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Report

Report

The Committee on Standards and Privileges has considered two reports from Dr Tom

Frawley in his former capacity as the interim Assembly Commissioner for Standards (interim
Commissioner). The reports are on investigations into separate complaints made by Ms Caral
Ni Chuilin MLA and Ms Mary McArdle about the conduct of Mr Jim Wells MLA. The interim
Commissioner’s reports and each of the complaints are appended to this report.

Complaint from Ms Ni Chuilin MLA

Ms Ni Chuilin’'s complaint related to an exchange she had with Mr Wells in Parliament
Buildings. In her letter of complaint to the interim Commissioner Ms Ni Chuilin alleged that at
approximately 12.15pm on 8 June 2011 Mr Wells had confronted her on the West staircase
in Parliament Buildings in an aggressive and threatening manner. She said that Mr Wells had
pointed his finger very close to her face and told her that she would not be welcomed by the
Ulster-Scots Community and that neither she nor her Special Adviser would be going to South
Down. At this time Ms Ni Chuilin’s Special Adviser was Ms McArdle (the other complainant).
South Down is Mr Wells’ constituency.

At a subsequent interview with the interim Commissioner on 27 March 2012 Ms Ni Chuilin
said that during the exchange in question Mr Wells had said to her “You needn’t think you are
to bring that murderer to South Down”. This was a reference to Ms McArdle. Ms Ni Chuilin
described Mr Wells as having been very angry, venomous and intimidating. She said that he
had pointed and wagged his finger at her and that she had found the exchange to have been
completely unexpected and unsettling.

Mr Wells met the interim Commissioner on 21 December 2011 when he confirmed that he
did have an exchange with Ms Ni Chuilin on 8 June 2011. Mr Wells said he had told Ms Ni
Chuilin that he disagreed with the appointment of Ms McArdle as her Special Adviser. He
considered that he had most likely made a remark along the lines of “You had better not
bring her to South Down”.

Mr Wells said he was unable to recall if he had pointed his finger at Ms Ni Chuilin during
the exchange. While he believed he may have wagged his finger towards her, he had no
recollection of having pointed his finger at Ms Ni Chuilin in an aggressive manner. Mr Wells
said that he did not consider his demeanour to have been intimidating and that he did not
believe that Ms Ni Chuilin had thought so at that time either, adding that Ms Ni Chuilin had
remained quite calm during the exchange.

Complaint from Ms McArdle

Ms McArdle’s complaint related to an exchange she had with Mr Wells in Parliament
Buildings. In her letter of complaint to the interim Commissioner Ms McArdle alleged that at
approximately 1.17pm on 27 June 2011 Mr Wells had passed her on the first floor corridor
in Parliament Buildings and had said to her “There’s the murderer herself”. Ms McArdle said
that Mr Wells had told her that she had murdered a young woman coming from her place of
worship, that she was a disgrace and that she better not dare come to South Down.

Ms McArdle said that the whole exchange lasted 1 — 2 minutes and during the entire time Mr
Wells wagged his finger in her face. At a subsequent interview with the interim Commissioner
on 27 March 2012 Ms McArdle said that Mr Wells had “verbally assaulted her”. Ms McArdle
described Mr Wells as having been forceful, aggressive and intimidating during the encounter
and said that she considered his conduct to be an abuse of power. She said that she did not
expect anyone to be subjected to such behaviour in the workplace.

When Mr Wells met the interim Commissioner on 21 December 2011 he confirmed that he
had had an exchange with Ms McArdle on 27 June 2011. Mr Wells said that Ms McArdle’s
account of the exchange in her letter of complaint was broadly correct. However, he disputed
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the allegation that he had called her a murderer although he did say that he had mumbled

a snide remark as he had passed her. At this interview Mr Wells declined to tell the interim
Commissioner what this remark was. However, in subsequent correspondence to the interim
Commissioner on 9 March 2012, Mr Wells said that he had used the phrase “monster
advisor”.

Mr Wells also said at the interview on 21 December 2011 that after having been challenged
by Ms McArdle on making his initial remark he had gone on to say “You murdered Mary
Travers coming out of her Catholic place of worship”. Mr Wells said that he may well have
said to Ms McArdle that she was a disgrace and that she better not come to South Down.
However, he disputed that he had used the word “dare” in this context.

Mr Wells told the interim Commissioner that his remarks to Ms McArdle about her not coming
to South Down had not been intended as a threat but that he considered her presence would
cause offence and that she would cause outrage if she were to attend certain events in the
Ulster-Scots community in the constituency. Mr Wells referred to the murder of Mary Travers
and said that he had made it clear to Ms McArdle that he considered what she had done had
been absolutely wrong. Mr Wells said that he should not be denied the right to express his
views on Ms McArdle’s appointment to the Special Advisor post.

The interim Commissioner’s Consideration of the Complaints

There is no dispute that there was an exchange between Ms Ni Chuilin and Mr Wells on 8
June 2011 and that there was a separate exchange between Ms McArdle and Mr Wells on
27 June 2011. Nor is there any dispute as to the general tenor of each of these encounters.
There are, however, some specific differences between the complainants’ and Mr Wells’
accounts of the respective exchanges.

The interim Commissioner spoke to a number of Assembly ushers who would have been

in the vicinity of the exchange between Ms Ni Chuilin and Mr Wells on 8 June 2011 and a
number of Assembly ushers who would have been in the vicinity of the exchange between

Ms McArdle and Mr Wells on 27 June 2011. However, none of these individuals were able to
recall having witnessed either exchange. The interim Commissioner was therefore unable to
obtain any independent evidence that corroborated either Ms Ni Chuilin’s or Mr Wells’ account
of the exchange that had taken place between them or that corroborated either Ms McArdle’s
or Mr Wells’ account of the exchange that had taken place between them.

The interim Commissioner has therefore advised the Committee that in the absence of
independent evidence he has been required to examine the provisions of the Code of Conduct
against the conduct that Mr Wells has acknowledged in responding to each of the complaints
against him.

In respect of the complaint from Ms Ni Chuilin, the interim Commissioner has concluded that
Mr Wells’ conduct did not meet the standard that the Code of Conduct requires. The interim
Commissioner has explained that in his view the manner in which Mr Wells approached Ms
Ni Chuilin was contrary to a requirement to treat other Members with courtesy, consideration
and respect and not to subject other individuals to unreasonable and personal attack.

In coming to this view the interim Commissioner was mindful of Ms Ni Chuilin’s account of
her perception of Mr Wells’ demeanour and attitude towards her during the exchange, and of
its impact on her. While the interim Commissioner accepts that Mr Wells may have had no
intention of expressing his views to Ms Ni Chuilin in an aggressive or intimidating manner,
and that he may consider that he did not do so, he is satisfied that Ms Ni Chuilin perceived
his conduct on that occasion to be such and that she found the encounter to have been
unsettling.

In respect of the complaint from Ms McArdle, the interim Commissioner has also concluded
that Mr Wells’ conduct did not meet the standard that the Code of Conduct requires. The
interim Commissioner has explained that he considers that as Mr Wells made a snide remark
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to Ms McArdle - by referring to her as a monster advisor - and as he cautioned her in such a
forceful manner against accompanying the Minister on official engagements in South Down,
he did not meet a requirement to treat the staff of other Members with courtesy, consideration
and respect and not to subject other individuals to unreasonable and personal attack.

Committee’s Consideration of the Matter

Before the Committee received the interim Commissioner’s reports on these complaints it
arranged for Mr Wells to be provided with advance copies. Mr Wells was informed that he was
entitled to provide the Committee with his own comments in respect of any matter raised in
either of the reports. Mr Wells was also informed that he could choose to appear before the
Committee to make his comments in person and to answer any questions that members of
the Committee may have had. Mr Wells did not choose to either provide the Committee with
comments in writing or to appear before the Committee.

The Committee considered the interim Commissioner’s reports at its meetings on 4 July
2012 and 4 September 2012. At each of these meetings the interim Commissioner attended
and provided an explanation to the Committee as to how he had arrived at his conclusions.

The Committee noted that Mr Wells had told the interim Commissioner that he should not
be denied the right to express his views on Ms McArdle’s appointment to the Special Adviser
post. The Committee agrees with this assertion (as did the interim Commissioner). The
Committee is clear that all Members should be free, within the law, to express any political
opinion that they may hold and that the Assembly should not seek to prevent or limit any
political opinion being expressed legally. The Committee also acknowledges that Members
are entitled to express their opinions in a robust and forceful manner and that this is to be
accepted in the normal cut and thrust of political life.

Nonetheless, Members do have a duty in respect of the manner in which they express their
opinions. Beyond a certain point the forceful expression of an opinion can become unduly
confrontational. Members are not entitled to be aggressive or threatening and individuals
should not be subjected to unreasonable or excessive personal attack. In fact, the Code of
Conduct requires, under the principle of Respect, that Members must treat other Members
and the staff of other Members with courtesy and respect.

Having taken all of these factors into consideration, and having given careful consideration

to the evidence gathered by the interim Commissioner and his judgement of the matter, the
Committee has ultimately concluded that, on each of the two occasions in question, Mr Wells’
conduct went beyond what is acceptable under the Code of Conduct. The Committee agrees
with the interim Commissioner’s conclusion that in respect of both exchanges Mr Wells failed
to comply with the requirements of the Code of Conduct. Both complaints are therefore
upheld.

The Committee wrote to Mr Wells on 4 September 2012 informing him of the Committee’s
decision that he had breached the Code of Conduct and telling him that he should write a
letter of apology to the two complainants and that a copy of the letters of apology should
be sent to the Committee for inclusion in the Committee’s Report. The Committee had
agreed that an appropriate apology in writing from Mr Wells to the complainants would allow
it to report that the matter had been resolved and the correspondence to Mr Wells set this
position out. The correspondence went on to state that should Mr Wells not provide the
Committee with a copy of an appropriate written apology to each of the complainants by 18
September 2012, the Committee would have to give consideration to recommending to the
Assembly that a sanction be imposed.

Mr Wells responded to the Committee on 18 September 2012. In his response Mr Wells
stated that he could not apologise to either of the complainants and he set out his reasons
for his position.
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It is highly regrettable that Mr Wells did not apologise to the complainants. Both the

interim Commissioner and the Committee had concluded that he had breached the Code of
Conduct. Mr Wells should have acknowledged and accepted this outcome and apologised
for his breaches. An appropriate apology from Mr Wells to the complainants would, in the
Committee’s view, have provided a fitting and proportionate resolution to the matter.

Mr Wells’ decision not to apologise means the Committee has no option but to recommend
that the Assembly impose a sanction upon him for his failure to comply with the Code of
Conduct. Having considered the matter carefully, and having had regard to Mr Wells’ failure to
apologise, the Committee has agreed that Mr Wells should be suspended from proceedings
of the Assembly for a period of seven days.

Standing Order 69B (2) provides that, in consideration of a report from the Committee on
Standards and Privileges where the Committee has found that a member has failed to
comply with a provision of the Code of Conduct, the Assembly may impose a sanction upon
that member. Standing Order 69B (3)(c) provides for the Assembly to impose the sanction of
exclusion of the member from proceedings of the Assembly for a specified period.

The Committee on Standards and Privileges recommends that the Assembly imposes upon
Mr Wells the sanction of exclusion from proceedings of the Assembly for a period of seven
days. The Committee shall bring forward a motion to this effect.

The Committee takes this opportunity to remind all Members of their duty to observe the
principles of conduct as set out in the Assembly’s Code of Conduct. These principles include
the principles of Respect and Good Working Relationships. Members must treat other
Members and staff with courtesy and respect.
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AssEMBLY OMBUDSMAN
[ For Northern Ireland

Our Ref: S 3/11 Qe June 2012

Mr Paul Gill —_
Clerk to the Committee on Standards and Privileges STANDARDS &
Northern Ireland Assembly

Parliament Buildings 25 JUN 2012
Ballymiscaw

Stormont PRIVILEGES __

BELFAST
BT4 3XX

Dear /MQ- 4?//)

COMMITTEE ON STANDARDS AND PRIVILEGES

| enclose my report to the Committee in respect of the complaint against
Mr Jim Wells MLA that was referred to me by Ms Caral Ni Chuilin MLA.

| am happy to discuss my views with the Committee and to answer any questions
on my report, if that is considered helpful.

Yours sincerely

T FRAWLEY CBE
Interim Commissioner for Standards

Enc

Progressive House, 33 Wellington Place, Belfast. BT1 6HN

- . (028) 99262815
Tel: (028) 36262835 Fax: (028) 20 20 o,
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Report by the Interim Commissioner for Standards
to the Northern Ireland Assembly
Committee on Standards and Privileges
on a complaint from
Ms Caral Ni Chuilin MLA
against
Mr Jim Wells MLA

This report is privileged and is the property of the Interim Assembly
Commissioner for Standards.

It has been prepared for presentation to the Committee on Standards and
Privileges (the Committee). Neither the report nor its contents should be
disclosed to any person unless such disclosure is authorised by the Interim
Commissioner or the Committee.

The report remains confidential until such time as it is published by the
Commiittee.




Reports from the interim Assembly Commissioner for Standards

Role of the Interim Assembly Commissioner for Standards

1. 1 have prepared this report in my role as the Interim Commissioner for
Standards of the Northern Ireland Assembly. In this role, | consider any matter
relating to the conduct of Members of the Assembly that is referred to me by any
person or by the Clerk to the Committee on Standards and Privileges (the Clerk
of Standards), including specific complaints in relation to alleged breaches of
the Code of Conduct for Members. My purpose is to undertake an independent
investigation of the matter or complaint referred to me and to present my
findings to the Committee on Standards and Privileges (the Committee). Any
decision or action beyond my investigation is then a matter for the Committee.

The Complaint

2. | have been asked to examine a complaint made by Ms Caral Ni Chuilin MLA
against Mr Jim Wells MLA. In her letter of complaint, a copy of which is at
Appendix 1, Ms Ni Chuilin has stated that at approximately 12.15pm on
8 June 2011, as she was about to enter the Assembly Chamber, she had an
exchange with Mr Wells. Ms Ni Chuilin alleged that Mr Wells “confronted [her]
in a very aggressive and threatening manner”; that “he pointed his finger very
close to [her] face”; and that he “told [her] that [she] would not be_welcomed by
the Ulster-Scots Community” and that “neither [she] nor [her] Special Adviser
would be going to South Down”.

3. Ms Ni Chuilin has stated that she considers that Mr Wells' conduct on that
occasion was not “befitting behaviour for an elected member of the Assembly”,
and that it constituted a breach of the Members’ Code of Conduct. Specifically,
Ms Ni Chuilin has alleged that Mr Wells failed to observe the Principle of
Conduct concerning ‘Good Working Relationships’.

4. Also in her letter of complaint, Ms Ni Chuilin has alleged that “there are several
other incidents which have taken place from this initial incident which involved
the same member, [herself] and [her] member of staff’, however, she did not
provide any detail of those other incidents.
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The Code of Conduct

5. The Code of Conduct for Members of the Northern Ireland Assembly (the Code)
provides advice and guidance to Members on the standards of conduct
expected of them in discharging their duties as Members of the Assembly. The
Code aims to cover the conduct of Members with respect to anything they say
or do in their capacity as an elected Member. It recognises that Members are
entitled to express legally any political opinion they may hold but requires that in
doing so, they do not express opinions in a manner that is manifestly in conflict
with the Principles of Conduct.

6. The Code requires Members to observe a number of Principles of Conduct.
These are the Seven Principles of Public Life (the Nolan Principles), and other
principles agreed by the Assembly. The Principles of Conduct address the
areas of public duty; selflessness; integrity; objectivity; accountability; openness;
honesty; leadership; equality; promoting good relations; respect; and good
working relationships.

7. Ms Ni Chuilin has referred specifically in her letter of complaint to ‘good working
relationships’. In this regard, the Code states:

“Members should work responsibly with other Members of Assembly for the
benefit of the whole community. Members must treat other Members and the
staff of other Members with cour{esy and respect. Members must abide by
the Assembly Standing Orders and should promote an effective working
environment within the Assembly”.

8. In relation to the principle of ‘respect’, the Code states:

“It is acknowledged that the exchange of ideas and opinions on policies may
be robust but this should be kept in context and not extend to individuals
being subjected to unreasonable and excessive personal attack. Members
should keep in mind that rude and offensive behaviour may lower the public’s
regard for, and confidence in, Members and the Assembly itself. Members
should therefore show respect and consideration for others at all times”.

10



Reports from the interim Assembly Commissioner for Standards

Conduct of the Investigation

9. linitially received Ms Ni Chuilin’s letter of complaint on 30 June 2011 via the
Clerk of Standards. Although Ms Ni Chuilin’s name was printed on the letter, it
was unsigned. | therefore asked Ms Ni Chuilin to confirm whether she had
submitted the letter to the Clerk and, if so, to resubmit a signed letter directly to
me. By the time | received Ms Ni Chuilin’s signed letter of complaint, the
Assembly’s summer recess had commenced. In the circumstances, |
considered it appropriate to wait until the end of the recess before advising
Mr Welis about Ms Ni Chuilin’s complaint.

10. 1 wrote to Mr Wells on 2 September 2011, providing him with a copy of
Ms Ni Chuilin’s letter of complaint and seeking his comments on the allegations
she had made against him. | also informed Mr Wells that | was content to
arrange a meeting with him that would enable him to respond to me in person.
In correspondence dated 16 November 2011, Mr Wells accepted my invitation
to meet with him. | met with Mr Wells on 21 December 2011 and put a number
of questions to him regarding Ms Ni Chuilin’s complaint. (I also made enquiries
to Mr Wells at the same meeting about the separate complaint against him that
had been submitted to me by Ms Mary McArdle, the former Special Adviser to
the Minister for Culture, Arts and Leisure, about an exchange she had with
Mr Wells on 27 June 2011 (complaint reference S4/11)). Following the meeting,
Mr Wells was provided with a copy of the note that had been made of our
discussion. Mr Wells agreed the factual accuracy of the note on 29 February
2012. A copy of the agreed meeting note (which has been redacted to remove
information relating solely to the separate complaint submitted by Ms McArdle)
is at Appendix 2.

11. Having made some further enquiries of Mr Wells following our meeting, | met
with Ms Ni Chuilin on 27 March 2012. Following the meeting, Ms Ni Chuilin
was provided with a copy of the note that had been made of our discussion.

Ms Ni Chuilin agreed the factual accuracy of the note on 9 May 2012. A copy of
the agreed meeting note is at Appendix 3.

11
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12.

In responding to my enquiries, Mr Wells and Ms Ni Chuilin both informed me
that some Assembly Ushers had been in the vicinity of their exchange on 8 June
2011. Since these individuals were potential witnesses to the conduct
complained of, | arranged for my Deputy, Mrs Marie Anderson, to make

enquiries to them on my behalf. The meetings with the Assembly Ushers took
place on 14 May 2012.

Evidence Obtained

13.

14.

15.

At our meeting on 21 December 2012, Mr Wells confirmed that he did have an
exchange with Ms Ni Chuilin on 8 June 2011. He informed me that the
exchange took place, by chance, in the corridor outside the door behind the
Speaker’s chair, as Ms Ni Chuilin had been leaving the Chamber.

Mr Wells explained the context of his exchange with Ms Ni Chuilin by referring
to his views on the appointment of Ms Mary McArdle to the post of Special
Adyviser to the Minister for Culture, Arts and Leisure. Mr Wells’ stated views in
this regard are documented in the note of our meeting (Appendix 2). Mr Wells
commented that there had been “much controversy” about Ms McArdle’s
appointment and that it had been reported extensively in the media at the time
(May 2011). He stated that he had contributed to the debate as he had felt
strongly about the issue. He also highlighted that he considered that he should
not be denied the right to express his views on Ms McArdle’s appointment to the
Special Adviser post.

Mr Wells described his exchange with Ms Ni Chuilin on 8 June 2011. He
informed me that it lasted for approximately 20 seconds, during which time, he
had told Ms Ni Chuilin that he disagreed with the appointment of Ms McArdle as
her Special Adviser and that she (Ms Ni Chuilin) should not bring Ms McArdle
on any official visits to South Down. He considered that he had most likely
made a remark along the lines, “You had better not bring her to South Down”.
Mr Wells also described how Ms Ni Chuilin had responded by stating that she
did not agree with his view on Ms McArdle’'s appointment and that they had both
then walked away from each other.

12
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16. Mr Wells commented to me that most Ulster-Scots and sporting groups in South
Down had at least one member who had been a victim of the Troubles and that
those groups would have found it “deeply offensive” if Ms McArdle had
accompanied Ms Ni Chuilin, in her capacity as Minister, to any official events in
the constituency. Mr Wells also commented to me that he considered that the
groups to which he had referred would not hold the same view with regard to the
Minister herself, since she had secured a mandate, and he emphasised his view
that it would be Ms McArdle, and not Ms Ni Chuilin, who would be unwelcome in
South Down. He informed me that he did not recall having explained to
Ms Ni Chuilin why he considered that she Ms McArdle should not accompany
her to South Down.

17. Mr Wells told me that he was unable to recall if he had pointed his finger at
Ms Ni Chuilin during their exchange but believed that he may well have done
so. He also said he had no recollection of having pointed his finger at
Ms Ni Chuilin in an aggressive manner but that he believed he may have waved
his finger towards her. In addition, Mr Wells told me that he did not consider his
demeanour towards Ms Ni Chuilin to have been intimidating and that he did not
believe that she had considered it intimidating at that particular time either; he
considered that she had only formed this view some weeks later, after his
subsequent exchange with Ms McArdle (on 27 June 2011). Mr Wells also
commented that he considered that the Assembly Ushers in the vicinity of his
exchange with Ms Ni Chuilin would have intervened had he been behaving
aggressively. He commented that he had not formed the view that any of the
Ushers had regarded the exchange as anything other than a normal occurrence.

18. Ms Wells also commented to me that Ms Ni Chuilin had remained “quite clam”
during the exchange and that he considered their encounter to have been a

normal expression of views, within the context of “the cut and thrust of politics”.

19. Mr Wells advised me that he spoke to Ms Ni Chuilin on only one occasion, that
is, the occasion referred to in her complaint (8 June 2011), and that as far as he
was concerned, there were no other incidents involving him and Ms Ni Chuilin
(or him and Ms McArdle), as Ms Ni Chuilin had alleged in her letter of complaint.

13
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21.

22.

23.

24,

At our meeting on 27 March 2012, Ms Ni Chuilin described her exchange with
Mrs Wells on 8 June 2011. She informed me that she had just come down the
west staircase on her way into the Assembly Chamber when she had
encountered Mr Wells coming from the Chamber. Ms Ni Chuilin informed me
that Mr Wells had remarked, as he passed her, “You needn'’t think you are to
bring that murderer to South Down”. She also told me that she had responded
by saying that she (Ms Ni Chuilin) would be going to South Down. Ms Ni
Chuilin described Mr Wells as having been very angry, “almost venomous” and

intimidating during the exchange and that he had pointed and wagged his finger
at her.

Ms Ni Chuilin informed me that she had found the exchange with Mr Wells to
have been completely unexpected and unsettling, and that she considered his
conduct to have been markedly different to the civil demeanour she had
observed on his part previously. She commented that while she accepted that
questions were at times asked and answered by Members in a robust manner,
she considered the encounter with Mr Wells’ on 8 June 2011 to have been more
than a heated exchange within the usual ‘cut and thrust of politics’ and that his
attitude to her on that occasion had been personal and aggressive.

Ms Ni Chuilin informed me that she was aware that Assembly Ushers had been
in the vicinity of the exchange with Mr Wells on 8 June 2011. She commented,
however, that since the Ushers had been sitting inside the Chamber, they may
not have witnessed what had been said.

In relation to the other incidents involving Mr Wells, to which she had referred in
her letter of complaint, Ms Ni Chuilin informed me that these had taken place
within the Chamber. As such, she was aware that they were not matters that
fell within my remit as Interim Commissioner for Standards, and that she would
be addressing them through the Speaker’s Office.

The Assembly’s Director General informed me that four Assembly Ushers were
on duty at approximately 12.15pm on 8 June 2011in the vicinity of the exchange
that took place between Mr Wells and Ms Ni Chuilin. My Deputy, Mrs Marie
Anderson, met with each of the Ushers but none had any recollection of an

14
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exchange between Ms Ni Chuilin and Mr Wells or even of having seen either
Member in that location at that time.

Analysis of Evidence and Findings

25.

26.

My investigation has found some discrepancy in the accounts Ms Ni Chuilin and
Mr Welis provided to me with regard to the precise circumstances that preceded
the events on 8 June 2011 that have resulted in this complaint being made.

Ms Ni Chuilin has stated that she encountered Mr Wells coming from the
Chamber as she was on her way there while Mr Wells has informed me that the
exchange took place, by chance, as Ms Ni Chuilin was leaving the Chamber.
There is no dispute, however, that there was an exchange between the two
Members on that occasion in the corridor outside the door at the back of the
Assembly Chamber. In addition, there is a general consensus as to the nature
of the comments that were made by Mr Wells at that time (regarding the
appointment of Ms McArdle as the Minister's Special Adviser).

However, there is a clear difference between Ms Ni Chuilin and Mr Wells’
opinions on what was actually said; the manner in which it was said; and indeed
the entire tone of exchange itself. Ms Ni Chuilin has told me that Mr Wells
referred to Ms McArdle as “that murderer” when he told her (Ms Ni Chuilin) that
she should not bring Ms McArdle to South Down. She has also informed me
that that she considered Mr Wells was very angry, intimidating, aggressive and
“almost venomous” during their exchange and that he pointed and wagged his
finger at her. In addition, she has described how she found the experience to
have been completely unexpected and unsettiing. Mr Wells has described the
exchange as one in which he told Ms Ni Chuilin that he disagreed with

Ms McArdle’'s appointment and that she “had better not” bring her to official
engagements in South Down. He has told me he considered that his
demeanour towards Ms Ni Chuilin was not intimidating and that while he may
well have pointed and/or waved his finger towards her, this had not been in an
aggressive manner. In addition, Mr Wells has informed me that he regarded the
nature of the exchange as normal within “the cut and thrust of politics” and that
Ms Ni Chuilin had remained “quite calm” and had responded with her own view
before walking away.
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27.

28.

29.

30.

Although | have established that a number of Assembly Ushers were in the
vicinity of the exchange between Ms Ni Chuilin and Mr Wells, those individuals
have been unable to provide me with any evidence that might corroborate either
version of events. My judgement as to whether Mr Wells’ conduct on 8 June
2011 constituted a breach of the Code must therefore be based solely on the
accounts that he and Ms Ni Chuilin have provided to me.

In responding to my enquiries, Mr Wells has made it clear that he has very
strong personal views about the appointment of Ms McArdle to the post of
Special Adviser to the Minister of Culture, Arts and Leisure, and | am aware that
he expressed those views in the local press shortly after his exchange with

Ms Ni Chuilin'. There is no dispute that Mr Wells is entitied to hold such
personal views and to express them in an appropriate forum and manner, and
within the law. My consideration of this complaint is concerned with the way in
which Mr Wells, as a Member of the Assembly, articulated his views to another
Member, Ms Ni Chuilin, on 8 June 2011 and, specifically, whether his conduct
on that occasion constituted a breach of the Code.

As | have already recorded, the Code states that “Members must treat other
Members and the staff of other Members with courtesy and respect” and that
they “should promote an effective working environment within the Assembly”. In
addition, while the Code acknowledges that the 'exchange of opinions may be
robust, it requires that individuals are not “subjected to unreasonable and
excessive personal attack”. It also requires Members to “show respect and
consideration for others at all times” and it highlights that “rude and offensive
behaviour may lower the public’s regard for, and confidence in, Members and
the Assembly itself”.

The absence of any independent evidence to corroborate Ms Ni Chuilin’s
specific account of her exchange with Mr Wells means | have been required to
examine the provisions of the Code against the conduct that Mr Wells has
acknowledged in responding to the allegations made against him. Having done
so, | have formed the view that Mr Wells’ conduct during his exchange with on

' Newsletter, 17 June 2011

10
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31.

Ms Ni Chuilin on 8 June 2011 did not meet the standards that the Code requires
of Members. Specifically, | consider that the fact that Mr Wells took a “by
chance” encounter with Ms Ni Chuilin as they were passing in the corridor
outside the Chamber as an opportunity to communicate his disagreement with
her decision to appoint Ms McArdle as her Special Adviser (a decision that

Ms Ni Chuilin, as Minister, was entitled to make) and to caution against

Ms McArdle accompanying the Minister on official engagements in the South
Down constituency, and the strong possibility that he pointed or wagged his
finger at her while doing so (whether aggressively or otherwise) are contrary to
the requirement for Members to treat other Members with “courtesy”,
“consideration” and “respect” and to not subject other individuals to

“unreasonable and personal attack”.

In addition, | am mindful of Ms Ni- Chuilin’s account of her perception of

Mr Wells’ demeanour and attitude towards her during the exchange, and of its
impact on her. While | accept that Mr Wells may have had no intention of
expressing his views to Ms Ni Chuilin in an aggressive or intimidating manner,
and that he may consider he did not do so, | am satisfied that she perceived his
conduct on that occasion to be such and that she found the encounter to have
been “unsettling”. It is my view, therefore, that Mr Wells’ actions did little to
“promote an effective working environment within the As;embly”, which is what
the Code expects of him, and also that his conduct may well have been
perceived by Ms Ni Chuilin as the “rude and aggressive behaviour” that the
Code highlights as having the potential to lower “the public’s regard for, and
confidence in, Members and the Assembly itself”.

Conclusion

32.

I recognise Mr Wells' right to express his personal views on the appointment of
Ms McArdle to the post of Special Adviser to the Minister for Culture, Arts and
Leisure. However, as a Member of the Assembly, Mr Wells has a particular
responsibility for the manner in which he does so. In this case, on the basis of
the evidence made available to me during my investigation, | am satisfied, for
the reasons outlined in paragraphs 30 and 31 above, that Mr Wells’ conduct
during his exchange with Ms Ni Chuilin in Parliament Buildings on 8 June 2011

11
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constituted a breach of the provisions of the Code. Specifically, | consider that
Mr Wells’ actions on that occasion were in conflict with the Principles of Conduct
regarding ‘Respect’ and ‘Good Working Relationships’.

»H
T FRAWLEY CBE &D June 2012
Interim Commissioner for Standards

12
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S 3/11 - APPENDIX 1

Member’s complaing agalnst My Jien Welfs MLA. 30 due 281t

8" June 2011

At approximately 12.15, | was walking down the West Staintase to go inta the Chamber for a vate, a
division had been called. Mr §im Wells was watking down the stairs behind me and confronted me In
3 very agaressive skl threatening manner, He polated his finger very close to my face and bold me
that ! would not be welcomed by the Ulstar-Soots Community and that neither | nar my Spedat
Advisor would be going to South Down.

| asked Mr Wels ba stop pointing his finger at my face and informed him that | would be going to
South Down. 1do anticipate from time to time there may be heated sxchanges during a debate that
Is all part of the cut and thrust of politics. Hawaver | da not expect any member $o behave in an
ntimidating and threatening manwer, which in my view is not befitting behaviour for an elected
member of the Assambly,

Under the heading “Googd working relationships “

Members should work respensibly with other members of the assembly for the benefit of the whole
community.Membersmust treat other members and the staff of othar members with courtesy and
vespect, Members must abide by the assembly standing orders and should promote an effective
worklng environment with in the assembly.

1 believe Mr Jim Wells hes breached this nule, there ace several other incldents which has taken place
from this Initial incvdent which lavalved the same membser, myself and my member of staff

Ms Caral Ni Chullin

19



Report on complaints against Mr Jim Wells MLA from Ms Caral Ni Chuilin MLA and from Ms Mary McArdle

S 3/11 - APPENDIX 2

831 and S 4M1

NOTE OF MEETING WITH JiM WELLS MLA CN 21 DECEMBER 2011 REGARDING
COMPLAINTS BY CARAL NI CHUILIN MLA AND MARY McARDLE

Pregent:  Mr.Jim Wellzs MLA
Mr Toin Frawley, Interim Commissionar for Standarda
Mrs . Investigating Officer {Notetaker)

1. Atthe outset of tha mesting Mr Wells thanked M Frawley for offering to meet with
him. MrWells stated that until he had recsived Mr Frawley's letter of 2 Seplember
2011, he had been unaware that Mg Ni Chuitin and M3 McArdle had made
complaints againet him. He said that he saw no reason why he had not been
informed earlier about the complaints, given that the conduct complained of by
Ms Ni Chuifin and Ms McArdie was allaged fo have occurred in Juhe 2011,

Mr Wells confimed that he had been involved in verbal exchanges with

#s Ni Chuilin and Ma McArdle but that he considered the delay in him being
informad that the two complainants ware asserling the axchanges constituled
breaches of the Assembly’s Code of Conduct had “prejudiced his poaition” as he
had not had an oppartunity to make contemporaneous notes of the encounters In
order that he could respond fully to the alegations that had been made against him.

2. Mr Frawley explained that Ms Ni Chullin and Ms McArdle's letters of complaint had
besn unsigned when they had been referred to him initially by the Clerk of the
Committee on Standards and Privileges at the end of June 2011, Ha had therefore
faund it neceasary to ask Ms Ni Chuilin and Ms McArdle to sonfirm if they had
submiitted the letters to the Clark and, If 8o, to resubmit signed lettess to him
(Mr Frawlay) directly. Mr Frawloy also explained that when the signed letters had
been returned o him ha had considared it bast to wait until the and of the
Assembly's simmer recess, which by that time had commenced, before advising
Mr Wells about the complaints.  Mr Frawley apologised If Lhis was now causing
Mr Welle any difficulty in having to responding to the allegations made against him.

3. MrWells explained the context of his exchanges with Ms Ni Chuilin and
s MoArdle. He detailed his views on the appeintment of Ms McArdie to the post of
Special Advisor fa the Minister of Culture, Arts and Leisure. #r Walls referrad to
tow Ms McAndle had been convicted of the murder of Mary Travers, the daughter of

magistrate Tom Travers. He described how Miss Travers had been shat eoming ot
1
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of church in 1984, and he spake of how he had been "horified” by "that insidious
crime” and of how it had remained at tha forefront of hiz memory since. Mr Wells
sald that thete had been “much controversy” about Ms McArdle's appointment to
the Special Advisor post and extensive coverage about it in the media arpund the
time of the appointment (May 2011). He added that he had contiibubed to that
debate as he had felt strongly about the issue.

. Mr Frawley outlined the allegations that Ms Ni Chutlin had made against him (as
stated in her letter of complaint dated 8 June 2011, which had been copied to

Mr Wels on 2 September 2011) and sxpiained that Ma N Chuilin viewed his
conduct as having breached the Code of Conduet for Members of the Assambiy.
Mr Frawiey alsa highlighted that in her letter of compiaint, Ms Ni Chuilin had referred
to “several other incidents” involving him (Mr Wells) that had taken place since the
particular exchange that was mllaged to have taken place on 8 June 2011, and
which the subject of her complgint, but that she had not provided any detail at this
time on thoea further incidents.

. MrWells said that he had only ever spoken to Ms Ni Ghuilin on one accasion, that
is, on the occasion raferred to in her latter of 8 June 2011.

« REDACTED -

Cansequently, he said, as far as he was concerned, there were no
‘other incidents”.

. Mr Frawley askad Mr Wells if his exchange with Ms Ni Chuilin had happened by
chance. MrWaells confirmed that this had been the case. Ha stated that the
exchange had taken place just outside the Chamber as Ms Ni Chuilin was leaving.
Mr Wolis described how he had told Ms Ni Chullin that he disagreed with the
appointment of Ms McArdle 1o the Speclal Aqﬂsor posl. He had also told Ms
MeArdle that she should not bring Ms McArdie on any official visits to South Down.
Mr Wells toid Mr Frawley that he had most likely said something along the lines of,
“You had betier not bring her to South Down”, He explained that most Llister Scots
and sporting groups in that constituency would have at least one member who had
been a vietim of the Troubles and that those groups would therefore have found #
*deeply offsnsive” if Ms McAndfe had accompanisd the Minister to any events in the
constituency. Mr Waells said that the groups would not have: held the same view
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about the Minlster herself visiting, as she had gecured 8 mandate, and he
emphasized that it was Ms McArdle and net Ms Ni Chuilin who was unwelcome in
South Down. Mr Wells poinied out that around the time of the exchange, “feelings
had been running high™ about Ms McArdie's appointmant and thera had baen much
media coverage. including a BBC Spotlight programme aboat the issue. Mr Wells
advised Mr Frawley that he did not recall having had the oppodtunity to explain to
Ms Ni Chuilin why he considered that she should not bring Ms MoeArdle to South
Down as their exchange had lasted for only approximately 200 seconds.

7. Mr Frawley asked Mr Wells if he had poimed his finger at Ms Ni Chuilin, Mr Wells
responded that he was unable to recall but surmised that he may well have done
§0. He said that he had no reccllectian of having pointed his finger at Me Ni Chuilin
in an aggressive manner but that he may have wavad his finger towards her.

Mr Wells desciibed how Mr Ni Chuilin had responded to his cormments by stating
that she did not agrae with his view on Ms McAwdle’s appointment. He had then
waked away, as did she. Mr Wells advised that the exchange had taken piace in
the carddor just outside the door behind the Speaker's chair and that & number of
sacurity personnel had been in the vicinity,. He commented that he had had no
impression that any of those security personnel had considered the exchangs to
have been anything other than a normal occurrence.

8. Mr Frawley asked Mr Wells if his demeanour towards Ms Ni Chuilin had been
intimidating. Mr Wells replied that he did not consider this to have been the case
and that he did not believe that Ms Ni Chuilin had thought so at the time either.
Rather, he said, he belleved she had only formed thad view some weeks later, after
his exchange with Ms McArdls.  Mr Wolls said that he believed that had he been
behaving aggressively towards Ms Ni Chuilin, the security personnel nearby would
have stapped in. Ha highlighted that ha belisved he should not be denied the right

 to express his view on the appointment of Ms McArdle to a Special Advisor post, far
which, he considenad, she had no relevant knowledge, expetience or expertise,

B. Mr Frawley then asked Mr Wells about the allegations that had been made against
him by Ms MoeArdle.

- REDACTED -
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10.
- REDACTED -
1.
- REDACTED -
12 - REDACYED -
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- REDACTED -

Me Wells said that Ms Ni Chuilin had not raised
her voice and had remained “quite calm®; ha had regarded their encounter as a
novmal expression of viaws, the likes of which often takes place “in the cut and
st of politics™ and of which he had had experience himself on many occasfons in
the past,

13,
-REDACTED -

14. Mr Frawiay concluded the meeting by advising Mr Wells that he would now make
arrangemanis o speak to Ma Ni Chuilin and Ms McArdle, and to other witnesses
wha could be identified from the information provided to him. Mr Frawley also
adviead that when he had completed his enquiries, he would consider the evidence
gathered and lest it againsl the Cade of Conduct and then repornt to the Committee.
He explained that it would then be for the Committea to considar his repost and take
a view on his findings. Finally, Mr Frawley advised that a note of the meetling would
be prepared and forwarded to Mr Wells for his commentfagreemant.

15.The meeting ended at 3.35 pm .

| agree that thiz node is a true and accurate aceount of my discussians with the
Intarim Commisaioner for Standards, Mr Tom Frawley, on 21 December 2011, and
that tha information conveyed to the Interim Comemissloner on that date is trae to
the best of my knowladge and belief. | am aware that this information may be
uzet in any proceedings by the Assemhiy,

Signed: Date: _ 29 ) 2 L
Jim Wells MLA
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S 3/11 - APPENDIX 3

NOTE OF MEETING WITH MS CARAL Ni CHUILIN MLA ON TUESD

WBUDSMANS g
27 MARCH 2012 AT 3.10PM IN PARLUAMENT BUILDINGS < N
4

Present:  Carsl Ni Chullin MLA 2R 2
Tom Frawley, Interim Commissioner for Standarde.
, Investigating Officer (Notetaker) \
1. Mr Frawley cpened the meeling by thanking Ms Ni Chutlln for meeting with him.
Mr Frawiey explained that he had amangead to meet with Ms NI Chuilin in order to
obtain a fullar understanding of her perspective of the events that caused her to

submit a complaint about the conduct of Mr Jim Walls MLA. Mr Frawiey advised
Ms Ni Chuilin that he had already met with Mr Wells.

2. MrFrawley asked Mg Ni Chuilin to dascribe the exchange with Mr Wells on
8 June 2011, to which she had refemred in her letber of complaint. Ms Ni Chuilln
explainad that she had just come down the west staircase on har way into the
Assembly Chamber when sha had ancountered Mr Wells coming from the
Chamber. She described how Mr Wells. as he passed by, had said, “You needn’t
think your are to bring that murderer to South Down”, and how she had responded
that she (Ms Ni Chuilin) wauld ba going to South Down. Ms Ni Chuilin said that
Mr Wells had been very angry, almost venomous', and intimidating, and had
pointed and wagged his finger at her. She described how she had found the
experienca to have been compistely unsxpecied and unsettling. Ms Ni Chuilin
also described how Mr Wells' conduct on that occasion had heen markedly
different to that which she had observed previously, when she had judged his
demeanour o be civil.

3. MrFrawley advised Ms NI Chuilin that he had noted that in her letter of complaint,
she had ackiibwledged that there may at times be ‘heatad exchanges' within the
‘cut and thryst of politics’. He asked Ms Ni Chuilin if ehe considerad that her
exchange with Mr Weils on 8 June 2011 had been more than such a ‘heated
exchange’. Ms NI Chuilin told Mr Frawley that she accepted that at times
questions wsre asked. and were answered, in a forthright manner but that
Mr Wells' atiitude tawards her on 8 June 2011 had baen differant; in her view it
had been personal and aggressive and not within what she would describe as the
wsual cut and thrust of politles.
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4,

Mr Frawley asked Ms Ni Chuilin if anyone had witnessed her exchange with

Mr Wells on 8 June 2011. Ms NI Chuilln advised that the Assembly door keepers
had been in the vicinity but that as thay has been sitting pn tha other side of the
door, they may not had heard the exchange.

. Mr Frawley asked Ms Ni Chuilin about the referance, in her latter of complaint, to

‘several other incidents’ involving Mr Wells singe the time of the exchange on

8 June 2011. Ms Ni Chuilin infonmed Mr Frawley that she believed that Mr Wells
had taken exception to the appeintment of Mary McArdie as her Special Advisor.
She explained that the manner in which Mr Welle was manifasting his views on
this maiter was unacceptable and berdaring on the aggressive. Ma Ni Chuilin told
WMr Frawley that she considered that Mr Walls had also bahaved inappropriately
within the Assembly Chamber and that she would be addreasing this matter
through the Speaker's Office. Ms Ni Chuilin confirmed that the other incidents
involving Mr Walls, to which she had refsrrad in her lefter of complaint, had been
in relation to Mr Wells' conduct within the Chamber. She advised Mr Frawley that
she was aware that these matters were beyond the scope of his remit.

Mr Frawley asked Ms Ni Chuilin if she had any further information that might
assist in his investigation. Ms Ni Chuifin indicated that she had nathing further to
add,

Mr Fravdey explained that a note of the mesting would be prepared and
forwarded o Ms NI Chuilin for her comment/agreament. He alsc explained that
when he had completed his anquiries, he would consider the evidenoce gathered
and test it against the Code of Conduct and then report to the Commiites. it
would then ba for the Committee to consider his report and take a view on its
content before making a decision on her complaint.

Mr Frawiey ended the meeting at 3.25pm by thanking Ms Ni Chullin for meeting
with him.

{ agree that thia nota is & true and accurate account of my discussion with tha
Interim Commissloner for Standards, Mr Tom Frawley, on 27 March 2012, and
that the information conveyed to the Interim Commissioner on that date is true
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to the best of my knowledge and beliaf. | am awara that this information may
be used In any proceedinga by the Assembly.

Signed: Date: ‘T Mty 202
Caral Ni Chuilin MLA
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ASSEMBLY OMBUDSMAN

for Northern Ireland

Our Ref: S 4/11 25 dune 2012

Mr Paul Gill
Clerk to the Committee on Standards and Privileges STANDARDS &
Northern Ireland Assembly

Parliament Buildings 25 JUN 2012

Ballymiscaw PRIVILEGES
Stormont

BELFAST
BT4 3XX

Dear /}’WQ. ﬁ //,

COMMITTEE ON STANDARDS AND PRIVILEGES

| enclose my report to the Committee in respect of the complaint against
Mr Jim Wells MLA that was referred to me by Ms Mary McArdle.

| am happy to discuss my views with the Committee and to answer any questions
on my report, if that is considered helpful.

Yours sincerely

T FRAWLEY CBE
Interim Commissioner for Standards

Enc

Progressive House, 33 Wellington Place, Belfast. BT1 6HN
: Fax: (028
Tel: (028) %Ogg-qﬂm_éﬂ;‘ tfax (028) %
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S 411

Report by the Interim Commissioner for Standards
to the Northern Ireland Assembly
Committee on Standards and Privileges
on a complaint from
Ms Mary McArdle
against
Mr Jim Wells MLA

This report is privileged and is the property of the Interim Assembly
Commissioner for Standards.

It has been prepared for presentation to the Committee on Standards and
Privileges (the Committee). Neither the report nor its contents should be
disclosed to any person unless such disclosure is authorised by the Interim
Commissioner or the Committee.

The report remains confidential until such time as it is published by the
Committee.
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Role of the Interim Assembly Commissioner for Standards

| have prepared this report in my role as the Interim Commissioner for
Standards of the Northern Ireland Assembly. In this role, | consider any matter
relating to the conduct of Members of the Assembly that is referred to me by any
person or by the Clerk to the Committee on Standards and Privileges (the Clerk
of Standards), including specific complaints in relation to alleged breaches of
the Code of Conduct for Members. My purpose is to undertake an independent
investigation of the matter or complaint referred to me and to present my
findings to the Committee on Standards and Privileges (the Committee). Any

decision or action beyond my investigation is then a matter for the Committee.

The Complaint

2.

| have been asked to examine a complaint made by Ms Mary McArdle (who at
the time of submitting her complaint was the Special Adviser to the Minister for
Culture, Arts and Leisure) against Mr Jim Wells MLA. In her letter of complaint,
a copy of which is at Appendix 1, Ms McArdle has stated that at approximately
1.17pm on 27 June 2011, as she was walking along the first floor corridor of
Parliament Buildings, she had an exchange with Mr Wells. Ms McArdle has
alleged that when he had passed by her, Mr Wells stated, "There’s the murderer
herself”. She has also alleged that Mr Wells told her that she was a disgrace
and that she had better not dare come to South Down. In addition, Ms McArdle
has stated that throughout the exchange, which lasted for one to two minutes,
Mr Wells “was wagging his finger in [her] face”.

Ms McArdle has stated that she considers that Mr Wells’ conduct on that
occasion “is totally contrary” to the Principle of Conduct set out in the Code of
Conduct for Members of the Assembly in relation to ‘Good Working
Relationships’.

The Code of Conduct

The Code of Conduct for Members of the Northern Ireland Assembly (the Code)
provides advice and guidance to Members on the standards of conduct
expected of them in discharging their duties as Members of the Assembly. The

3
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Code aims to cover the conduct of Members with respect to anything they say
or do in their capacity as an elected Member. It recognises that Members are
entitled to express legally any political opinion they may hold but requires that in
doing so, Members do not express opinions in a manner that is manifestly in

conflict with the Principles of Conduct.

5. The Code requires Members to observe a number of Principles of Conduct.
These are the Seven Principles of Public Life (the Nolan Principles), and other
principles agreed by the Assembly. The Principles of Conduct address the
areas of public duty; selflessness; integrity; objectivity; accountability; openness;
honesty; leadership; equality; promoting good relations; respect; and good
working relationships.

6. Ms McArdle has referred specifically to ‘good working relationships’. In this
regard, the Code states:

“Members should work responsibly with other Members of Assembly for the
benefit of the whole community. Members must treat other Members and the
staff of other Members with courtesy and respect. Members must abide by
the Assembly Standing Orders and should promote an effective working
environment within the Assembly”.

7.  Inrelation to the principle of “respect’, the Code states:

“It is acknowledged that the exchange of ideas and opinions on policies may
be robust but this should be kept in context and not extend to individuals
being subjected to unreasonable and excessivé personal attack. Members
should keep in mind that rude and offensive behaviour may lower the public’s
regard for, and confidence in, Members and the Assembly itself. Members

should therefore show respect and consideration for others at all times”.

Conduct of the Investigation

8. linitially received Ms McArdle’s letter of complaint on 30 June 2011 via the
Clerk of Standards. Although Ms McArdle’s name was printed on the letter, it
was unsigned. | therefore asked Ms McArdle to confirm whether she had
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10.

11.

submitted the letter to the Clerk and, if so, to resubmit a signed letter directly to
me. By the time | received Ms McArdle’s signed letter of complaint, the
Assembly’s summer recess had commenced. [n the circumstances, |
considered it appropriate to wait until the end of the recess before advising

Mr Wells about Ms McArdle's complaint.

| wrote to Mr Wells on 2 September 2011, providing him with a copy of

Ms McArdle’s letter of complaint and seeking his comments on the allegations
she had made against him. | also informed Mr Wells that | was content to
arrange a meeting with him that would enable him to respond to me in person.
In correspondence dated 16 November 2011, Mr Wells accepted my invitation
to meet with him. | met with Mr Wells on 21 December 2011 and put a number
of questions to him regarding Ms McArdle’s complaint. (I also made enquiries to
Mr Wells at the same meeting about the separate complaint against him that
had been submitted to me by Ms Caral Ni Chuilin MLA about an exchange she
had with Mr Wells on 8 June 2011 (complaint reference S$3/11)). Following the
meeting, Mr Wells was provided with a copy of the note that had been made of
our discussion, which he agreed on 29 February 2012. A copy of the agreed
meeting note (which has been redacted to remove the references that relate
solely to the separate complaint submitted by Ms Ni Chuilin) is at Appendix 2.

Having made some further enquiries of Mr Wells following our meeting | met
with Ms McArdle on 27 March 2012 regarding her complaint. Following the
meeting, Ms McArdle was provided with a copy of the note that had been made
of our discussion. Ms McArdle agreed the factual accuracy of the note on

5 April 2012. A copy of the agreed meeting note is at Appendix 3.

I also arranged for my Deputy, Mrs Marie Anderson, to make enquiries, on my
behalf, to the Assembly Ushers who were on duty in the vicinity of the exchange
between Mr Wells and Ms McArdle on 27 June 2011 and who may therefore
have witnessed the conduct complained of. The meetings with the Assembly
Ushers took place on 14 May 2012.
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Evidence Obtained

12.

13.

14.

15.

At our meeting on 21 December 2011, Mr Wells confirmed that he did have =~
exchange with Ms McArdle in the first floor corridor of Parliament Buildings. He
was uncertain of the exact date of the exchange but recalled that it had taken
place on a sitting day in the Assembly.

Mr Wells explained the context of his exchange with Ms McArdle by referring to
his views on her appointment to the post of Special Adviser to the Minister for
Culture, Arts and Leisure. Mr Wells' stated views in this regard are documented
in the note of our meeting (Appendix 2). Mr Wells commented that there had
been “much controversy” about Ms McArdle’s appointment and that it had been
reported extensively in the media at the time (May 2011). He stated that he had
contributed to the debate as he had felt strongly about the issue. He also
highlighted that he considered that he should not be denied the right to express
his views on Ms McArdle’s appointment to the Special Adviser post.

Mr Wells informed me that Ms McArdle’s account of their exchange, as provided
in her letter of complaint, was broadly correct but that he could not be certain
that he had used the precise words she had reported. In response to my
enquiry as to whether he had said, “There’s the murderer herself’, as

Ms McArdle had alleged, Mr Wells informed me that he had mumbled “a snide
remark” as they had passed each other but that he had not used the exact
words Ms McArdle had attributed to him. He stated that he did not say the word
“murderer” in addressing Ms McArdle but that he could understand why she
believed that he had done so. During our meeting, Mr Wells declined to
disclose the word he had used in speaking to Ms McArdle. Subsequently, in
written correspondence dated 9 March 2012, Mr Wells informed me that the
phrase he had used was “monster advisor”. A copy of Mr Wells’ letter is at
Appendix 4.

Mr Wells informed me at our meeting that Ms McArdle had responded to his
initial comment to her by turning to him forcefully and enquiring what he had just
said. He also informed me that at that point he had said to Ms McArdle, “You
murdered Mary Travers coming out of her Catholic place of worship”.
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16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

In response to my enquiry as to whether he had told Ms McArdle that she was
“a disgrace” and that she had better not come to South Down, as had been
stated in the letter of complaint, Mr Wells stated that he may well have dcic o
as the comment sounded “like something [he] would say”. He disputed,
however, having used the word “dare”, as Ms McArdle had alleged.

Mr Wells informed me that his remarks to Ms McArdle about her not coming to
South Down had not been intended as a threat; rather the issue had been that
he considered her presence would cause offence and that she would cause
“outrage” if she were to attend certain events in the Ulster-Scots community in
the constituency. He commented to me that most Ulster-Scots and sporting
groups in South Down had at least one member who had been a victim of the
Troubles and that those groups would have found it “deeply offensive” if

Ms McArdle had accompanied Ms Ni Chuilin, in her capacity as Minister, to any
events in the constituency.

Mr Wells informed me that he believed others had been present in the corridor
of Parliament Buildings at the time of his exchange with Ms McArdle. He was
unable to recall who had been there but believed that they would have been
able to overhear what had been said.

Mr Wells confirmed to me that he had not spoken to Ms McArdle since their
exchange on 27 June 2011.

At our meeting on 27 March 2012, Ms McArdle described her exchange with

Mr Wells on 27 June 2011. She informed me that she had been in the first floor
corridor of Parliament Buildings, approaching Room 145. She had encountered
Mr Wells about to go into another room. Ms McArdle stated that Mr Wells had
made a comment to her, she had turned towards him and he had then “verbally
assaulted” her, wagging his finger at her face. She also said that Mr Wells had
said that she was a disgrace; had referred to her having killed a young girl
coming from her place of worship; and had warned her she should not go to
South Down.
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21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

Ms McArdle told me that the comment Mr Wells had made to her initially was
“There’s the murderer herself’, and that when she had turned back to him, he
had added, “Don't you dare think you can go to South Down”. When | pointed
out to Ms McArdle that Mr Wells had informed me that he had used the word
“monster advisor” rather than “murderer” when addressing her, Ms McArdle said
that she had not heard Mr Wells’ comment as that. She pointed out that, in any
case, it would also have been unacceptable for him to have used the word
“monster”, and she would have challenged him about it.

Ms McArdle described Mr Wells’ demeanour during the exchange as “forceful”
and “aggressive”, and she informed me that she had been taken aback by his
conduct as she had expected to be treated courteously in her place of work.
She also described Mr Wells’ conduct as having been “hostile”, “intimidating”
and “unprofessional’, and said that she had considered it “an abuse of power”.
In addition, Ms McArdle commented that she did not expect anyone to be
subjected to such behaviour in their workplace.

Ms McArdle was unable to recall if anyone else had been present in the
corridor, or within hearing distance, at the time of her exchange with Mr Wells or
if there had been any Assembly Ushers in the vicinity.

Ms McArdle confirmed to me that she had had no other exchanges with
Mr Wells, either prior to or since 27 June 2011.

The Assembly’s Director General provided me with details of the three
Assembly Ushers who were on duty at approximately 1.17pm on 27 June 2011
in the vicinity of the exchange that took place between Ms McArdle and

Mr Wells. My Deputy, Mrs Marie Anderson, met with each of the Ushers but
none had any recollection of an exchange between Ms McArdle and Mr Wells or
even of having seen either of them in that location at that time.

Analysis of Evidence and Findings

26.

In response to my enquiries, Mr Wells has confirmed that he did have an
exchange with Ms McArdle in the first floor corridor of Parliament Buildings on
27 June 2011. However, he has disputed Ms McArdle's account of that
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27.

28.

exchange. Ms McArdle has informed me that she heard Mr Wells say, “There’s
the murderer herself’ and that he “verbally assaulted” her, telling her that she
was “a disgrace” and that she “dare” not think she could go to South Down. She
has described his demeanour during the exchange as “forceful”, “aggressive”,
“hostile”, “intimidating” and “unprofessional” and stated that Mr Wells wagged
his finger “at her face”. She has also informed me that she was taken aback by
Mr Well's conduct, which she regarded as “an abuse of power” and not
something that anyone should be subjected to in their place of work. Mr Wells
has informed me that he “mumbled a snide remark” to Ms McArdle as they had
passed in the corridor. He has told me that he did not say the word “murderer”
in addressing Ms McArdle and advised me subsequently that the phrase he had
used was in fact “monster advisor”. Mr Wells has accepted that he may well
have told Ms McArdle that she was “a disgrace” and that she had better not
come to South Down, although he has disputed that he used the word “dare” in
this context.

Although | have established that a number of Assembly Ushers were in the
vicinity of the exchange between Ms McArdle and Mr Wells, those individuals
have been unable to provide me with any evidence that might corroborate either
version of events. My judgement as to whether Mr Wells’ conduct on 27 June
2011 constituted a breach of the Code must therefore be based solely on the
accounts that he and Ms McArdle have provided to me.

In responding to my enquiries, Mr Wells has made it clear that he has very
strong personal views about Ms McArdle’s appointment to the post of Special
Adviser to the Minister of Culture, Arts and Leisure, and | am aware that he had
already expressed those views in the local press shortly before his exchange
with her'. There is no dispute that Mr Wells is entitled to hold such personal
views and to express them in an appropriate forum and manner, and within the
law. My consideration of this complaint is concerned with the way in which

Mr Wells, as a Member of the Assembly, articulated his views to Ms McArdle on
27 June 2011 and, specifically, whether his conduct on that occasion constituted
a breach of the Code.

! Newsletter, 17 June 2011
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29. As | have already recorded, the Code states that “Members must treat other
Members and the staff of other Members with courtesy and respect” and that
they “should promote an effective working environment within the Assembly”. In
addition, while the Code acknowledges that the exchange of opinions may be
robust, it requires that individuals are not “subjected to unreasonable and
excessive personal attack”. It also requires Members to “show respect and
consideration for others at all times” and it highlights that “rude and offensive
behaviour may lower the public’s regard for, and confidence in, Members and
the Assembly itself”.

30. The absence of any independent evidence to corroborate Ms McArdle’s specific
account of her exchange with Mr Wells means | have been required to examine
the provisions of the Code against the specific conduct that Mr Wells has
acknowledged in responding to the allegations made against him. Having done
so, | have formed the view that Mr Wells’ conduct during his exchange with
Ms McArdle on 27 June 2011 did not meet the standards that the Code requires
of Members. Specifically, | consider that by making what he described to me as
“a snide remark” as he passed by Ms McArdle; by referring to her as a “monster
advisor”; and by cautioning in such a forceful manner against her accompanying
the Minister on official engagements in the South Down constituency, Mr Wells
did not meet the requirement for Members to treat the staff of other Members
with “courtesy”, “consideration” and “respect” and to not subject other individuals
to “unreasonable and personal attack”.

31. In addition, | am mindful of Ms McArdle’s comments regarding Mr Wells’
demeanour towards her during the exchange, and of its impact on her. While |
accept that Mr Wells may have had no intention of expressing his views to
Ms McArdle in a “forceful”, “aggressive”, “hostile” or “intimidating” manner, and
that he may consider he did not do so, | am satisfied that she perceived his
conduct on that occasion to be such and that she was taken aback by the
encounter. It is my view, therefore, that Mr Wells’ actions did little to “promote
an effective working environment within the Assembly”, which is what the Code
expects of him, and also that his conduct may well have been perceived by
Ms McArdle as the “rude and aggressive behaviour” that the Code highlights as

10
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having the potential to lower “the public’s regard for, and confidence in,
Members and the Assembly itself’.

Conclusion

32. |recognise Mr Wells’ right to express his personal views on the appointment of
Ms McArdle to the post of Adviser to the Minister of Culture, Arts and Leisure.
However, as a Member of the Assembly, Mr Wells has a particular responsibility
for the manner in which he does so. In this case, on the basis of the evidence
made available to me during my investigation, | am satisfied, for the reasons
outlined in paragraphs 30 and 31 above, that Mr Wells’ conduct during his
exchange with Ms McArdle in Parliament Buildings on 27 June 2011 constituted
a breach of the provisions of the Code. Specifically, | consider that Mr Wells’
actions on that occasion were in conflict with the Principles of Conduct
regarding ‘Respect’ and ‘Good Working Relationships’.

T FRAWLEY CBE XM June 2012
Interim Commissioner for Standards

11
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S4/11 - APPENDIX 1

Complaint against Mr jim Wells MLA.
SMAN'S
G o%@
a0 Jui 201
Tuesday z8™ June 2011
To Whom It May Concenm:

On 17 June 2011 ataround 1.17 pm | was walking along the first fleor comridor and | met Jim Wells,
Ke smilled and | <3id helle, When he had passad me he said "There's the murdarar herself, 1 turned
around ta face him and said excuse me what did you say. He tofd me that | was a disgrace and that i
batter not dare to come to South Down.

He said that | had murndered that young woman coming from her place of warship. The entire time
he was wagging his finger In my face, ant repeating that ) batter not dare come ta South Down and
that | was a disgrace. (sald that he could not sell me where 1 conld and couldn't go, and how dare
he speak to me that way, The whole exchange lasted 1 - 2 minutes,

In the Code of Conduct Under the heading :

“Good Working Relationships”
it states;

“Members should work responsibly with.other memtiers of the assembly for the benefit of the
whole community. ' Members must treat other members and the staff of other members with
courtesy and respect. Memhers must sbide by the assembly standing ofders and shauld promots an
effective working environment with in the assembly.

| beligve the actions of Mr Wells is totally contrary to this

Mary McArdle
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S4/11 - APPENDIX 2

§3/11 and § 4M1

NOTE OF MEETING WITH JIM WELLS MLA CN 21 DECEMBER 2011 REGARDING
COMPLAINTS BY CARAL NI CHUILIN MLA AND MARY McARDLE

Present:  Mr.Jim Wells MLA
Mr Toin Frawley, Interim Commissionar for Standards
Investigating Officer {Notetaker)

1. Atthe outset of the mesting Mr Wells thanked Mr Frawley for offering to meet with
him. MrWells stated that until he had received Mr Frawley's letter of 2 September
2011, he had been umaware that Mg Ni Chuitin and Ma MoArdie kad made
complaints against him. He said that he saw no reason why he had not been
informed eardier about the complaints, given that tha conduct complained af by
Ms Ni Chuitin and Ms McArdle was alleged to have occeurred in June 2011.

Mr Wells confirmed that he had been involved in verbal exchanges with

Ms Ni Chullin and Ma McArdie but that he considered the delay in him being
informed that the two complainants waera assarling the exchanges constituted
breaches of the Assembly's Code of Conduct had “prejudiced his position” as he
had not had an opportunity to make contemporaneous notes of the encounters in
order that he could respond fully to the allegations that had been made against him.

2. Mr Frawley explained that Mg Ni Chuilin and Ms McArdle's letters of complaint had
besn unsigned when they had beea refetred to him initially by the Clerk of the
Committae on Standards and Privileges at the end of June 2011, He had thersfore
found it nevessary to ask Ms Ni Chuilin and Ms McArdle to confinm if they had
submitted the letters to the Clerk and, If 8o, to resubmit signed letters to him
(Mr Frawlay) directy. Mr Frawley also explained that when the signed letters had
been returned to him ha had congidarad it bast to wait until the end of the
Assembly's summer recess, which by that time had sommenced, before adviging
Mr Wells about the complaints. Mr Frawley apologised if (his was now causing
Mr Waelle any difficulty in having to responding to the allegations made against him.

3. MrWells explained the context of his exchanges with Ms Ni Chuilin and
Ms MoArdie. He detalled his views on the appeintment of Ms McArdie to the post of
Spacial Advisor fo the Minister of Cultune, Arts and Leisure. Mr Walls referrad to
how Mz MeArdle had been convicted of the murder of Mary Travers, the daughter of

magistrate Tom Travers. He described how Miss Travers had been shot coming out
1
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of church in 1984, and he spoke of how he had been “homified” by “that insidious
crime” and of how il had remained at the forefront of his memory since. Mr Wells
said that there had been “much controversy” about Ms McArdie's appointment to
the Spacial Advizor post and extensive coverage ahout it in the media around the

time of the appaintment (May 2011), He added that ba had contributed to that
debate az ba had felt strongly about the issue.

4. Mr Frawley oullined the allegations that Ms Ni Chuilin had made against him

- REDACTED -

He also gaid that he had
spoken only once to Me McArdie, that is, on the occasion mfaread to in her letter of
28 June 2011. Consequently, he said, as far ag he was concemed, there were no
“other incidents”.

- REDACTED -

He explained that most Ulster Scots
and sporting groups in that constituenscy would have at least one member who had
been a victim of the Troubles and that those groups would therefore have found it
‘deeply offensive” if Ms McArdia had accompanied the Minister to any everds in the
constitugncy.
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- REDACTED -

Mr Walls poirted out thal around the time of the exchangs, “fealings
had been running high* about Ms McArdle's appoinimant and thare had been much
media coverape, including a BBC Spotlight programme about the issue.

- REDACTED -

» REDACTED -

8. Mr Frawley then asked Mr Wells about the allegations that had been made against
him by Mes McArdie. Mr Wells confirmed that an exchange with Ms McArdie had
taken place in the first flooc corridor of Pailiament Buildinga. He aiso confirmed that
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Ms MocArdie's account of the exchange was broadly correct bul that he could not be
certain that he had used the exact words she had reparted in her letter of complaint,

10. Mr Frawley asked Mr Weills i he had stated, "There's the murderer herself”, as had
been alleged by Ms McArdle. Mr Wells replied that he had mumbled "a enide
rermeark” to Ms McAndle as they had passed by each other but that he had not used
the specific wonds she had attributed to him. He clarified that he had not used the
word, “murdarer”. Mr Wells said that he did recall the particuiar ward he had used
and that he would seek legal advice on whether he should disclose it to Mr Frawley.
He added that he could understand why Ms McArdle bad thought be had used the
word, "murderer”. Mr Woells went on to describe how Ms McArdie had tumed back
16 him forcefully, asking what he had just said to her. He had then said, "You
murdeved Mary Travers coming out of her Catholia piace of worship”. Mr Wells
dascribed how in response 1o his comment, Ms McAndie had said something along
the lines of, "What of t?* Mr Wells went on fo commaent to Mr Frawley that he had
heen “especially outraged that Mary Travers [had been) murdered coming from her
place of worship”, a place he regarded as “a sanctuary”, and that he had madae it
clear to Ms McAndle that he considered that what she had done had been
“absofutely wrong". Mr Wells also commented o Mr Frawdey that he believed that
he had the right to express such a view,

11. Mr Frawley asked Mr Welis if he had told Ms McArdle that she was "a disgrace” and
that she had better not come to South Down. Mr Weils responded that he may well
have done 50 as the comment scunded like something that he would say.
Furthermore, he gaid, he considered that Ms McArdle's appoinbnent to the Special
Adviser post was a disgrace and that she would cause “outrage” if she came to
certain events in the Ulster $cots community in South Down. Mr Wells told
Me Frawley (hat he had, however, not used the word, *dare”, as Ms McArdle had
alleged and he emphasised that his comments abowt Ms MoArdie not coming to
South Down had not been intended as a threat; the issue bad been that her
presence there would cause offence.

12, Mr Wells toid Mr Frawley that he was unable to recall the date of his exchangs with
Ms McArdie but that it had taken place on a Sitting day in the Assembly and that

uthers had been present in the corridor at the time, Mr \Wells was unable to recall
4
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whe had been in the corridor at the lime but believed that they would have
overheard his exchange with Me McArdia. Ha added that he considered that his
axchange with Ms MeArdie had been diffzrent in tone to that that which had taken
place previcusly with Ms Ni Chuilin.

- REDACTED -

13.Mr Frawley asked Mr Welis if he had had any further contact with Ms McArdle since
their exchange in the comidar. Mr Wells replied that he had had no further conlact
with Ms McArdie. He sald that he had seen her in the dining room with
Mz Ni Chuilin but had not spoken to her.

14. Mr Frawley concluded the meeting by advising Me Wells that he would now make
amangemems to speak to Ms Ni Chuilin and Ms McArdle, and to other witnesses
who could be identified from the information provided to him. Mr Frawley aiso
advised that whan ha had completed his enquiries. he would considsr the evidenge
gathered and test it against the Goda of Conduct and then report to the Commities.
He explained that it would then be far the Committes to consider his report and take
a view on his findings. Finally, Mr Frawley advised that a note of the meeting wauld
be prepared and forwarded to Mr Weils for his commentiagreement.

16.The meeting ended at 3,35 pm.

| agree that this note Is a true and accurata account of my discussions with the
Interim Commixsioner for Standards, Mr Tem Frawisy, on 21 December 2011, and
that the information canvayed to the interim Gommissioner on that date is true to
the bast of my knowledge and belief. | am aware that this Information may be
used in any proceadings by the Asaembly,

Signed: Date: 'I.Qj o‘t!la it
Jim Wells MLA
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S4/11 - APPENDIX 3

S311

NOTE-OF MEETING WITHMS MARY McARDLE ON TUESDAY 27 MARCH 2012
AT 3.25PM IN PARLIAMENT BUILDINGS

Present:  Mary McArdle
Tom Frawley, Interim Cominlsaioner for Standards
, Investigating Officer (Notetaker)

1. Mr Frawley opened the meefing by thanking Ms McArdle for meeting with him.
Mr Frawley axplained that he had amanged to meat with Ms McArdle in order to
obtain a fuler understanding of her perspective of the events thal caused her to
submit a compiaint about the conduct of e Jim Wells MLA. Mr Frawiey advised
Ms McArdie that he had already met with Mr Wella,

2. Mr Frawlay asked Ms McArdie to describe the axchange with Mr Wells on
27 June 2011, to which she had referred in her letfer of complaint. Ms McArdle
axplained that she had been retuming from the canteen ta Room 145, Pariament
B::ildings. Ms McAndla described how, a5 she had besn approaching Room 145, 7 ” 0
she had encoyntered Mr Welis just about ta go inta ancther room,
tewands herandihad “vadally assauited” her, wagging his finger at her face. ouw[(- @
Ms MoAndie tald Mr Frawley that Mr Wells had warned her that she should not go ,,_(‘W“"d'

to South Dovn. He had aiso said that she was a diagrace and that he had an
referred to her haying killed a young girl coming from her place of worship. bus mj'
Ms McArdle desuribed Mr Wells' demeanour as “forceful” and “aggressive”. \-oouS

3. Mr Frawiey asked Ms McArdie f Mr Wells had'used the word *murderer. L‘:“%
Ms McArdia confirmed that Mr Wells had done so. She described how he had J t’.tul:] .
sald, "there’s the murderer herself® and that when she had tumed back towards

him, he had said, "Don't you dare think you can go to South Down”™. Mr Frawiey
advised Ms McArdie that Mr Wells had stated that he had used the word
“monster” but not the word *murderer”. Ms McArdie responded that she had not
heard Mr Wells' remati ez such but that even if he had ssid “monster”, that toa
would have bean unacceptable and she wauld have challenged it. Ms McArdle
added that {0 some extent, the precise word uged by Mr Wells was irelevant as,
i her view, his conduct and dameanour had been campletely inappropriate.
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4. Mr Frawley asked Ms McArdie if she nad been taken aback by Mr Walls' conduct.
Ms McArdte replied that she had indeed been taken aback as she expecied to be
treated coureously in her place of work.

5. Mr Frawley asked Ms McAndle how she had responded to Mr Wells, Ms McArdle
advised that her response has been as stated in her letter of complaint. She
axplained that she had told Mr Waells not to speak to her in such a manner and
that she would go wherever she chosa.

6. Mr Frawley asked Ms McArdie if anyone had witnessed her exchange with
Mr Wells on 27 June 2011. Ms McArdie advised that she could not recatl if
anyone else had been present in the corridor at the time and that she was
uncsrtain as to whether any security personnel had been in the vicinity. She
added that she did not recollect anyane else having been within hearing distance
of the exchange,

7. Mr Frawley asked s McArdle if there had been any other similar incidents with
Mr Walls, either before or after the axchange on 27 June 2011, Ms McArdle
adviced that there had been no further Incidents involving her gersonally.

8. Mr Frawioy asked Ms McArdla if sha had any further information that might assist
in his investigation. Ms MeArdle indicated that she had nothing further to add to
the accotmis of the exchange she had aineady provided but commented that she
had found Mr Wells conduct to have been “hasiile”, “Infimidating” and
“uaprofessional to say the least”, and an abuse of power. She also said that she
did not expect anyone to he subjected to such behaviour in their place of work.

9. Mr Frawlay axplained that a nole of the meeting would be prepared and
forwarded to Ms MoArdle for her commentfagreement. He alea explained that
when he had completed his enquirles, he would consider the evidence pathersd
ahd test it against the Code of Conduct and then report to the Committes. It would
then be for the Commities fo congidar his report and take a view on its cantent
hefore making & decision on her complaint.
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10. M Frawtey ended the mosting at 3.40pm by thanking Ms MaAndie for maeting
with him

| agree that thie note I & true and scsurate aceouitt of vy diacussion with the
interim Comwiisalonar far Standacda, Mr Tom Frawdey, on 27 Mlarch 2012, and
that the information conveyed fo ihe Interim Commisaioner on that date is true
to the best of my knowledge and betief. ¢ am aware that thia infermetion may

be vaed in any proceedings by the Assembly.
Data: s" Zf /?\

Signed

) Mary McArdio
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S 4/11 - APPENDIX 4

Pariement Buiidings
Belfest BT4 30X

Mr Tom Feawiey
Assembly Qmbudsman
Progressive Housa

33 wellington Placs

871 6RN 9" March 2012

Deur Mr Frawdey,

| refer toyour letter dated 27 Isnary 2012 regarding the complaint iodged
by the Minister of Colture, Arts and Lalsure and her Special Advisor.

You requested that [ clarify the spetific comment made to Ms McArdle and |
am now In 8 position to do this. | used the phrwse ‘monster advisor” which as
You ave awsne Ms McArdie didd not hear corractty.

| remain totally convinced that Ms Ardie’s appointment was deeply affensive

10 the meny victims of IRA terrorism —a view confirmed by ber refusal to co-

operate with the Historicel Enquiries Team and her failure to provide the PSNI
with any Information she may ava sbout other terrorist incidents,

1trust that this is the information you require and If | can be of any further
assistance plaace dom't hasitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

Jim Wells MLA

Tr1ttmeq ateriooeaNyial Wodd BRITR TSR~
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Correspondence dated 26 June 2012
from the Committee to Mr Jim Wells MLA

Northern Ireland
Assembly

COMMITTEE ON STANDARDS AND PRIVILEGES
STRICTLY CONFIDENTIAL

Room 254
Parliament Buildings
Ballymiscaw
Stormont

Belfast

BT4 3XX

Tel: 028 9052 0333
Email: paul.gill@niassembly.gov.uk

Mr Jim Wells MLA
Room 218
Parliament Buildings
Ballymiscaw
Stormont

Belfast

BT4 3XX

26 June 2012

Dear Mr Wells,

Please find enclosed a copy of the interim Assembly Commissioner for Standards’
reports into complaints made against you by Ms Caral Ni Chuilin MLA and Ms Mary
McArdle. The Committee on Standards and Privileges will consider these reports at
its meeting at 1.30pm on Wednesday 4 July 2012.

It is the Committee’s position that reports to it from the interim Commissioner should
be provided in advance to the Member against whom the complaint has been made.
After having read the reports you may, if you wish, provide the Committee with your
comments in respect of any matter raised within the reports. If you do wish to provide
comments please provide them to me in writing by 10.30 am on Tuesday 3 July 2012.
Any such comments will be provided to the Committee at the same time as it receives
the interim Commissioner’s reports.

You may, if you wish, choose to appear before the Committee on Standards and
Privileges as a witness to make your comments in person and to respond to any
questions that members of the Committee may have. Please let me know if you do
wish to appear before the Committee.

Please note that the interim Commissioner’s report is strictly embargoed and should
not be shared with anyone else until such time as the Committee on Standards and
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Privileges has published its own report on this issue. The report should not be copied
and should be stored securely by you. The report has not yet been provided to anyone
else: this includes members of the Committee on Standards and Privileges. You
should not approach any member of the Committee about this case. Please also note
that your copy of the interim Commissioner’s report has been watermarked with your
initials — this copy of the report is unique to you.

Should you have any questions regarding this issue please contact me.

Yours sincerely,

Paul Gill
Clerk of Standards
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Correspondence dated 19 July 2012
from the interim Assembly Commissioner for
Standards to the Committee

ASsSEMBLY OMBUDSMAN
[0 Now o o elandl

QOur Ref: S 3/11 19 July 2012

Mr Paul Gill STANDARDS &
Clerk to the Committee on Standards and Privileges

Northern ireland Assembly 23 JUL 2012
Parliament Buildings

Ballymiscaw 9 PRIVILEGES
Stormont

BELFAST

BT4 3XX

Dear Mr Gill
COMMITTEE ON STANDARDS AND PRIVILEGES

| refer to my report on the complaint made by Ms Caral-Ni Chuilin MLA against Mr Jim
Wells MLA, which the Comriittee considered 4t its fmeeting on 4 July 2012.

The Committee will recall that during the' meeting, Mr Jonathan Craig MLA raised a
query concerning my findings on.a previous complaint submitted by Ms Ni Chuilin
against Mr Basil McCrea MLA. | consider it may be helpful to the Committee’s further
consideration of the complaint against Mr Wells if | clarify why | consider these two
complaints are not comparable.

| would remind the Committee of my approach to investigating complaints about
breaches of the Code of Conduct for Members of the Assembly (the Code), which is that
each case must be determined on its own facts. The complaint highlighted by Mr Craig
was made by Ms NI Chuilirr in November 2007 and related tc an alleged breach of a
different element of the Code from that under consideration inthe complaint about

Mr Wells' conduct.

In the 2007 complaint , Ms Ni Chuilin stated that on 25 September 2007, Mr McCrea
was accompanying two classroom assistants within Parliament Buildings when they
engaged (the then Minister for Education) Ms Caitriona Ruane MLA on the West
Staircase. Ms Ni Chuilin alleged that Mr McCrea facilitated this obstruction of

Ms Ruane, which was photographed by a press photographer. Ms Ni Chuilin asserted
that through his involvement in this encounter, Mr McCrea failed in his duty under the
Code of Conduct for Members of the Assembly (the Code), to observe the Principle of
Conduct concerning ‘Leadership”. In referring to Leadership, the Code states,
“Members should promote and support [the Principles of Conduct] by leadership and

Progressive House, 33 Wellington Place, Belfast. BT1 6HN
Tel: (028) 9026 2813 Fax: (028) 9026 2815
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example in order to establish and maintain the trust and confidence of the peogle of
Northern Ireland, and to ensure the integrity of the Assembly and its Members in
conducting business”.

Having conducted an investigation of this complaint, | concluded that while Mr McCrea
could have handled the encounter between his visitors and Ms Ruane in a more
responsible manner, his actions did not constitute a breach of the Code. The
Committee considered my report at its meeting on 10 September 2008 and accepted
my findings, and then published its own report on 17 September 2008.

As stated in my.report on the complaint against Mr Wells, Ms Ni Chuilin alleged that
Mr Wells’ comments and demeanour towards her on 8 June 2012 constituted a breach
of the Code in that he failed to observe the Principle of Conduct concerning ‘Good
Working Relationships’. In this regard, the Code requires Members to treat other
Members and the staff of other Members "with courtesy and respect” and expects
Members to “promote an effective working environment within the Assembly”.

As the Committee is aware, having completed my investigation of this complaint, |
concluded that that Mr Wells’ conduct during his exchange with Ms Ni Chuilin in on

8 June 2011 did constitute a breach of the provisions of the Code, in that his actions on
that occasion were in conflict with the Principles of Conduct regarding ‘Good Working
Relationships’ and ‘Respect’.

It is evident that my consideration of these two complaints resulted in different
conclusions as to whether or not the conduct complained of constituted a breach of the
Code. However, there is a clear distinction between the complaints, not only with
regard to the nature of the conduct complained of, but aiso in relation to the particular
aspect of the Code that was alleged to have been breached. My consideration of any
complaint submitted to me is based on the circumstances surrounding the specific
conduct complained of and an examination of that conduct against the relevant
provisions of the Code. Clearly therefore, these are two entirely different complaints
affected by completely different circumstances resulting in different conclusions.

I hope this clarification will be helpful in informing the Committee’s consideration of the
complaint about Mr Wells. | would of course be happy to provide further clarification of
this matter, should the Committee consider it helpful.

Yours sincerely

T FRAWLEY CBE
Interim Commissioner for Standards
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from the Committee to Mr |Jim Wells MLA
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COMMITTEE ON STANDARDS AND PRIVILEGES

STRICTLY CONFIDENTIAL

Room 254
Parliament Buildings
Ballymiscaw
Stormont

Belfast

BT4 3XX

Tel: 028 9052 0333
Email: pau! @il ¢ niassembly ooy vk

Mr Jim Wells MLA
Room 218
Parliament Buildings
Ballymiscaw
Stormont

Belfast

BT4 3XX

4 September 2012

Dear Mr Wells,

Further to my correspondence to you of S July, I am writing to inform you that at its
meeting today the Committee on Standards and Privileges considered again the
interim Assembly Commissioner for Standards’ reports into complaints made against
you by Ms Caral Ni Chuilin MLA and Ms Mary McArdle. I enclose for information
each of the interim Commissioner’s reports (which you have previously received),
together with some further correspondence from the interim Commissioner on this
matter.

Having given further consideration to these reports, the Committee has agreed with
the interim Commissioner’s conclusion that you failed to comply with the Assembly’s
Code of Conduct, in respect of the conduct referred to in each complaint.

Standing Order 69B provides that where it appears to the Committee that a member
has failed to comply with any provision of the Code of Conduct the committee may
make a report to the Assembly. The report may include a recommendation that a
sanction be imposed upon the member.

The Committee has agreed that, prior to it reporting, you should apologise in writing
to each of the complainants and that you should provide the Committee with a copy of
your apology. You should do this before 18 September 2012. The Committee has
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agreed that an appropriate apology in writing from you to the complainants will allow
it to report that the matter has been resolved.

In these circumstances it would not be necessary for the Committee to consider
recommending to the Assembly that a sanction be imposed. However, should you not
provide the Committee with a copy of an appropriate written apology to each of the
complainants by 18 September, the Committee will have to give consideration to
recommending to the Assembly that a sanction be imposed. Sanctions may include,
but are not limited to —

(a) a requirement that the member apologise to the Assembly;
(b) censure of the member by the Assembly;

(c) exclusion of the member from proceedings of the Assembly for a specified
period;

(d) withdrawal of any of the member’s rights and privileges as a member for
that period;

and for the avoidance of doubt, the rights and privileges withdrawn under sub-
paragraph (d) may include the rights to salary and allowances.

Please note that the Committee will publish in its report on this matter any response
that you provide to it.

Please also note that the interim Commissioner’s reports and correspondence and this
letter are all strictly embargoed and should not be shared with anyone else until such
time as the Committee on Standards and Privileges has published its own report on
this matter. These documents should not be copied and should be stored securely by
you. You should not approach any member of the Committee about this case. Please
also note that your copies of the interim Commissioner’s reports have been
watermarked with your initials — these copies of the report are therefore unique to
you.

Should you have any questions regarding any issue in this letter please let me know.

Yours sincerely,

Paul Gill
Clerk of Standards
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Correspondence dated 18 September 2012
from Mr Jim Wells MLA to the Committee

Parliament Buildings

SN, Ballymiscaw
| Vs Stormont
wedy "1:;:\‘ V iﬂi Belfast
Northern Ireland STAN B4 3XX
Mr Paul Gill Assembly DARDS &
Clerk for Standards and Privileges 18 SEP 9000
Northern Ireland Assembly =V
Parliament Buildings PRIVILEGES
Stormont
Belfast
BT4 3XX 18™ September 2012
Dear Mr Gill,

1 refer to your letter dated 4th September 2012 which relates to the complaints made
by the Minister of Culture, Arts and Leisure and her former Advisor - Ms Mary
McArdle. I am writing to inform you that I cannot apologise to either individual for
the following reasons.

The appointment of Ms McArdle as a Special Advisor caused a public outcry and
enormous hurt to the family of the late Mary Travers. The hurt, which still continues,
was caused by the role Ms McArdle had in the murder of Mary Travers. The fact that
Ms McArdle was subsequently removed from her post would indicate that the DCAL
Minister eventually realised the extent of the public concern that her decision had
caused.

It is a fundamental right of a public representative to express his or her concern about
this type of decision to the Minister and her advisor. I have no doubt that both the
Minister and Ms McArdle could claim to have been upset by my protest but this has
to be set in the context of the enormous hurt that the original decision caused to so
many in our community..

I am aware that this issue has dragged on for 15 months and has taken up a
considerable amount of the Committee's time.

I note that the Standards and Privileges Committee has already decided that in the
absence of an apology a sanction will be imposed upon me.

For the reasons outlined above 1 do not intend to withdraw or apologise for my
comments. However, apologies are due from the Minister for making the
appointment and from Ms McAurdle for her role in that terrible murder.

I trust that this response is helpful and if I can be of any further assistance to you or
the Committee, please don't hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

Jim Wells MLA
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Minutes of Proceedings of the Committee relating to the Report

Wednesday, 4th July 2012
Room 144, Parliament Buildings

Present: Mr Alastair Ross (Chairperson)
Mr Kieran McCarthy (Deputy Chairperson)
Mr Steven Agnew
Mr Cathal Boylan
Ms Paula Bradley
Mr Jonathan Craig
Mr David Mcllveen
Mr Alex Maskey
Mr Fra McCann
Mrs Sandra Overend

In Attendance: Mr Paul Gill (Assembly Clerk)
Ms Hilary Bogle (Assistant Clerk)
Mr Christopher McNickle (Clerical Officer)

Apologies: None.

1.34pm The meeting commenced in closed session.

Consideration of Reports from the interim Assembly Commissioner for Standards on
complaints against a Member

Members noted the Clerk’s paper and two reports received from the interim Assembly
Commissioner for Standards on complaints against a Member.

1.36pm The Chairperson welcomed Dr Tom Frawley and invited him to brief the Committee on
each of his reports.

1.41pm Ms Marie Anderson, Ombudsman’s Office joined the meeting.
2.19pm Ms Bradley and Mr Agnew left the meeting.

2.22pm Ms Bradley returned to the meeting.

2.23pm Mr Agnew returned to the meeting.

2.25pm Following discussion the Committee thanked Dr Frawley and Ms Anderson for
attending the meeting.

Following discussion on the interim Commissioner’s first report, the Chairperson put the
question that the Committee accepts the interim Assembly Commissioner for Standards’
conclusion that the Member has breached the Code of Conduct.

Ayes Noes Abstention
Mr Alex Maskey Mr Alastair Ross None

Mr Fra McCann Ms Paula Bradley

Mr Cathal Boylan Mr Jonathan Craig

Mr Steven Agnew Mr David Mcllveen

Mr Kieran McCarthy Mrs Sandra Overend

As the votes were equal the motion fell.

The Chairperson then put the question that the Committee rejects the interim Assembly
Commissioner for Standards’ conclusion that the Member has breached the Code of Conduct.
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Ayes Noes Abstention
Mr Alastair Ross Mr Alex Maskey None

Ms Paula Bradley Mr Fra McCann

Mr Jonathan Craig Mr Cathal Boylan

Mr David Mcllveen Mr Steven Agnew

Mrs Sandra Overend Mr Kieran McCarthy

As the votes were equal the motion fell.

Following discussion on the interim Commissioner’s second report, the Chairperson put the
question that the Committee accepts the interim Assembly Commissioner for Standards’
conclusion that the Member has breached the Code of Conduct.

Ayes Noes Abstention
Mr Alex Maskey Mr Alastair Ross None

Mr Fra McCann Ms Paula Bradley

Mr Cathal Boylan Mr Jonathan Craig

Mr Steven Agnew Mr David Mcllveen

Mr Kieran McCarthy Mrs Sandra Overend

As the votes were equal the motion fell.

The Chairperson then put the question that the Committee rejects the interim Assembly
Commissioner for Standards’ conclusion that the Member has breached the Code of Conduct.

Ayes Noes Abstention
Mr Alastair Ross Mr Alex Maskey None

Ms Paula Bradley Mr Fra McCann

Mr Jonathan Craig Mr Cathal Boylan

Mr David Mcllveen Mr Steven Agnew

Mrs Sandra Overend Mr Kieran McCarthy

As the votes were equal the motion fell.

Agreed: The Committee agreed to schedule further consideration of these complaints to
a future meeting after the summer recess.

[EXTRACT]
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5 and 6.

Tuesday, 4th September 2012
Room 144, Parliament Buildings

Present: Mr Alastair Ross (Chairperson)
Mr Kieran McCarthy (Deputy Chairperson)
Mr Steven Agnew
Mr Cathal Boylan
Ms Paula Bradley
Mr Jonathan Craig
Mr Colum Eastwood
Mr Alex Maskey
Mr Fra McCann
Mr David Mcllveen

In Attendance: Mr Paul Gill (Assembly Clerk)
Mr Jonathan McMillen (Assembly Legal Adviser)
Ms Hilary Bogle (Assistant Assembly Clerk)
Mr Christopher McNickle (Clerical Officer)

Apology: Mrs Sandra Overend

11.05am The meeting commenced in closed session.

Further consideration of Reports from the interim Assembly Commissioner for Standards and
commencement of the Northern Ireland Assembly Commissioner for Standards’ Functions.

Members noted correspondence of 23 July 2012 received from the interim Assembly
Commissioner for Standards clarifying an issue raised at a previous meeting of the Committee.

11.09am Mr McCann and Mr Eastwood joined the meeting
11.10am Mr Craig joined the meeting

11.10am The Chairperson welcomed Dr Tom Frawley, interim Assembly Commissioner for
Standards and Ms Marie Anderson, Deputy Ombudsman to the meeting and invited Dr Frawley
to outline the background to the two Reports and to brief the Committee on the further
correspondence received from him.

Dr Frawley reminded the Committee of the key points in the two Reports and clarified the
position in his correspondence of 23 July 2012.

11.22am The Chairperson thanked Dr Frawley and Ms Anderson for attending the meeting.
The Committee then discussed the reports on the complaints against a Member.

12.02pm Following discussion the Chairperson put the question that the Committee accepts
the interim Assembly Commissioner for Standards’ conclusion that the Member named in the
Commissioner’s first report had breached the Code of Conduct.

Ayes Noes Abstention
Mr Steven Agnew Ms Paula Bradley None

Mr Cathal Boylan Mr Jonathan Craig

Mr Colum Eastwood Mr David Mcllveen

Mr Alex Maskey Mr Alastair Ross

Mr Fra McCann
Mr Kieran McCarthy

The motion was carried.
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The Chairperson put the question that the Committee accepts the interim Assembly
Commissioner for Standards’ conclusion that the Member named in the Commissioner’s
second report has breached the Code of Conduct.

Ayes Noes Abstention
Mr Steven Agnew Ms Paula Bradley None

Mr Cathal Boylan Mr Jonathan Craig

Mr Colum Eastwood Mr David Mcliveen

Mr Alex Maskey Mr Alastair Ross

Mr Fra McCann
Mr Kieran McCarthy

The motion was carried.

Following discussion Mr Mcllveen proposed that the Committee should write to the Member
informing him of the Committee’s decision that he had breached the Code of Conduct and
telling him that he should note this outcome.

Question put:

That the Committee should write to the Member informing him of the Committee’s decision
that he had breached the Code of Conduct and telling him that he should note this outcome.

Ayes Noes Abstention

Ms Paula Bradley Mr Cathal Boylan Mr Steven Agnew
Mr Jonathan Craig Mr Colum Eastwood

Mr David Mcllveen Mr Alex Maskey

Mr Alastair Ross Mr Fra McCann

Mr Kieran McCarthy
The motion fell.

Mr Maskey proposed that the Committee should write to the Member informing him of the
Committee’s decision that he had breached the Code of Conduct and telling him that he
should apologise by means of a public statement to the Assembly.

Question put:

That the Committee should write to the Member informing him of the Committee’s decision
that he had breached the Code of Conduct and telling him that he should apologise by means
of a public statement to the Assembly.

Ayes Noes Abstention

Mr Cathal Boylan Ms Paula Bradley Mr Steven Agnew
Mr Colum Eastwood Mr Jonathan Craig

Mr Alex Maskey Mr Kieran McCarthy

Mr Fra McCann Mr David Mcllveen

Mr Alastair Ross
The motion fell.

Mr McCarthy proposed that the Committee should write to the Member informing him of the
Committee’s decision that he had breached the Code of Conduct and telling him that he
should write a letter of apology to the two complainants and a copy of the letters of apology
should be sent to the Committee for inclusion in the Committee’s Report.
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Ayes Noes Abstention
Mr Steven Agnew Ms Paula Bradley None

Mr Cathal Boylan Mr Jonathan Craig

Mr Colum Eastwood Mr David Mcllveen

Mr Alex Maskey Mr Alastair Ross

Mr Fra McCann
Mr Kieran McCarthy

The motion was carried.

Agreed: The Committee agreed that should the Member not provide the Committee
with a copy of an appropriate written apology to each of the complaints by 18
September 2012 the Committee would give consideration to recommending to
the Assembly that a sanction be imposed.

[EXTRACT]
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Wednesday, 19th September 2012
Room 21, Parliament Buildings

Present:

In Attendance:

Apologies:

Mr Alastair Ross (Chairperson)

Mr Kieran McCarthy (Deputy Chairperson)
Mr Steven Agnew

Mr Cathal Boylan

Ms Paula Bradley

Mr Colum Eastwood

Mr Fra McCann

Mr David Mcllveen (from agenda item 6)

Mr Paul Gill (Assembly Clerk)
Ms Hilary Bogle (Assistant Assembly Clerk)
Mr Christopher McNickle (Clerical Officer)

Mr Jonathan Craig
Mr Francie Molloy
Mrs Sandra Overend

1.30pm The meeting commenced in closed session.

6. Further consideration of two complaints against a Member

Members noted the Clerk’s Paper; correspondence from the Committee to the Member; and
the Member’s response.

The Clerk updated the Committee on this issue.

Agreed: The Committee agreed that the Clerk should provide it with further information
on sanctions that have been imposed on Members elsewhere.

2.25pm Colum Eastwood and David Mcllveen left the meeting.

[EXTRACT]
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Wednesday, 3rd October 2012
Room 144, Parliament Buildings

Present: Mr Alastair Ross (Chairperson)
Mr Kieran McCarthy (Deputy Chairperson)
Mr Steven Agnew
Mr Cathal Boylan
Ms Paula Bradley
Mr Jonathan Craig
Mr Colum Eastwood
Mr Fra McCann
Mr David Mcllveen
Mr Francie Molloy
Mrs Sandra Overend

In Attendance: Mr Paul Gill (Assembly Clerk)
Ms Hilary Bogle (Assistant Assembly Clerk)
Mr Christopher McNickle (Clerical Officer)

1.30pm The meeting commenced in closed session.

Further consideration of two complaints against a Member
Members noted the Clerk’s Paper and the Assembly Research Paper.
1.40pm Mr Eastwood joined the meeting

The Clerk updated the Committee on this issue.

Following discussion Mr Boylan proposed that the Committee recommend to the Assembly
that it impose upon the Member the sanction of exclusion from proceedings of the Assembly
for a period of seven days.

The Chairperson put the question that the Committee recommend to the Assembly that it
impose upon the Member the sanction of exclusion from proceedings of the Assembly for a
period of seven days.

Ayes Noes Abstention
Mr Steven Agnew Ms Paula Bradley None

Mr Cathal Boylan Mr Jonathan Craig

Mr Colum Eastwood Mr David Mcllveen

Mr Fra McCann Mr Alastair Ross

Mr Kieran McCarthy Mrs Sandra Overend

Mr Francie Molloy
The motion was carried.

Agreed: The Committee agreed that the Clerk should draft a report for consideration by
the Committee at its next meeting.

1.50pm Mr Eastwood left the meeting

[EXTRACT]
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Wednesday, 17th October 2012
Room 21, Parliament Buildings

Present: Mr Alastair Ross (Chairperson)
Mr Kieran McCarthy (Deputy Chairperson)
Mr Steven Agnew
Ms Paula Bradley
Mr Francie Molloy
Mrs Sandra Overend

In Attendance: Mr Paul Gill (Assembly Clerk)
Ms Hilary Bogle (Assistant Assembly Clerk)
Mr Christopher McNickle (Clerical Officer)

1.31pm The meeting commenced in closed session.

5. Draft Committee Report on two complaints against a Member

Agreed: Members discussed and agreed the draft Committee Report and ordered that
the report be printed.

Agreed: Members agreed that the Deputy Chairperson should sign a motion on behalf of
the Committee.

Agreed: The Committee agreed that the Committee’s report should be embargoed until
the commencement of the debate.

Agreed: The Committee agreed that the Clerk should write to the two complainants and
the Member complained of informing them of the Committee’s decision and
forwarding a copy of the Committee’s embargoed Report.

[EXTRACT]
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